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¡ Partner at Reid Collins & Tsai LLP, Dallas, TX.

¡ Co-Chair of Commercial Fraud Committee of                                         
American Bankruptcy Institute.

¡ Focuses on complex bankruptcy and business litigation, 
representing trustees, committees, and investors.

¡ Frequently handles bankruptcy-related litigation involving        
parallel criminal or regulatory proceedings.
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¡ Partner at Forshey & Prostok LLP, Fort Worth, TX.
¡ Represents debtors, creditors, and trustees in 

business bankruptcy cases.
¡ Substantial experience in bankruptcy-related 

litigation.
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¡ Trial Attorney, United States Trustee’s Office, Dallas, TX. 
¡ Appellate Coordinator for Region 6. 
¡ Member of the Honorable John C. Ford American Inn of Court. 
¡ Avid reality television viewer. 
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§ Strictly speaking, “bankruptcy fraud” is covered by                
18 U.S.C. § 157. 

§ That section prohibits, as part of a scheme or artifice to 
defraud:
§ The filing of a bankruptcy petition;
§ The filing of a document in a bankruptcy proceeding; 
§ The making of a false/fraudulent representation in relation to a 

bankruptcy proceeding; or
§ The making of a false/fraudulent representation in relation to a 

bankruptcy that is not, in fact, pending.

WHAT IS BANKRUPTCY FRAUD?
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§ Filing a disclosure statement in a bankruptcy proceeding containing false 
information for the purpose of perpetuating a fraudulent scheme.

§ Telling a creditor you filed bankruptcy when, in fact, you did not, to buy time 
to perpetuate a fraudulent scheme.

EXAMPLES
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§ 18 U.S.C. § 152 prohibits (among other things):
§ Fraudulent concealment of property of the estate;
§ False statements under penalty of perjury in a bankruptcy 

case;
§ Fraudulently receiving property from a debtor; and
§ Offering or receiving compensation for fraudulent action in 

a bankruptcy case.

OTHER RELEVANT STATUTES UNDER 
CHAPTER 9 OF TITLE 18
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§ Knowingly failing to disclose cash hidden under a 
mattress in the debtor’s house on Schedule B.

§ Filing a proof of claim against the debtor’s estate for 
money the creditor knows is not owed.

§ Accepting money from a client to falsify bankruptcy 
documents.

§ Trying to bribe a bankruptcy trustee.

EXAMPLES
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§ 18 U.S.C. § 153 prohibits:
§ The knowing and fraudulent appropriation, embezzlement, 

or transfer of property of the estate; or
§ The destruction of any document belonging to the estate; 
§ By a trustee, custodian, marshal, attorney, or other officer 

of the court.

OTHER RELEVANT STATUTES (CONT.)
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§ A debtor’s attorney stealing cash from a DIP account.
§ A debtor burning down his residence.
§ An angry creditor burning down the debtor’s residence.
§ A cash transfer by the debtor of funds belonging to the 

estate to an offshore trust.

EXAMPLES
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§ 18 U.S.C. § 155 prohibits:
§ A debtor, creditor, trustee, or attorney from knowingly 

and fraudulently entering into an agreement for the 
purpose of fixing fees or other compensation from the 
estate.

OTHER RELEVANT STATUTES (CONT.)
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§ Fines.
§ Name in the federal reporter.
§ Lose your right to vote.
§ Lose your right to own firearms.
§ Up to 5 years free room and board, courtesy of the federal 

government (or 1 year for a section 155 offense).

DOOR PRIZES
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ON THE OTHER HAND, YOU MIGHT GET     
TO MEET THIS GUY
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§ Wire fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1343.

§ Mail fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341.

§ Bank fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1344.

§ Subornation of perjury, 18 U.S.C. § 1622.

§ Aiding and abetting, 18 U.S.C. § 2.

OTHER POTENTIALLY RELEVANT STATUTES
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§ Suggesting your client misrepresent the extent of his assets 
on his bankruptcy schedules, which he will sign under penalty 
of perjury, violates section 1622 (subornation of perjury).  
Your client has also violated section 152 (concealment of 
assets with respect to a bankruptcy proceeding).

§ Taking out a personal loan from a bank knowing you’ll never 
pay it back, spending the money immediately, and then filing 
for bankruptcy violates section 1344 (bank fraud), section 
157 (bankruptcy fraud), and probably a host of other statutes.

EXAMPLES



FAMOUS BANKRUPTCY FRAUDSTERS
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§ Don’t act like you don’t know . . . .
§ Reality TV “stars” on the Real Housewives of New 

Jersey.

THE GUIDICES. WHO ARE THEY?
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§ Filed bankruptcy in 2009.  Case dismissed in 2011.
§ Failed to disclose in their bankruptcy schedules income 

received from the show.
§ E.g., Both Teresa and Joe signed an agreement to 

appear on the Bravo show for $110,000, which they 
failed to disclose.

§ They also failed to disclose income from rental 
properties.

WHAT’D THEY DO?
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§ Charged with 39 counts of conspiracy to commit mail and wire 
fraud, bank fraud, making false statements on loan 
applications, and bankruptcy fraud.

§ Result: Teresa served 11 months.  Joe is currently serving his 
sentence and is scheduled to be released in 2019.

WHAT DID THEY GET CHARGED WITH?
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LENNY “NAILS” DYKSTRA
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§ Former All-Star outfielder who played 12 years for the 
Mets and Phillies.

§ Later founded several companies, including “Nails 
Investments,” which he used to impart information 
regarding his “investment ideas.”

§ Shouldn’t everyone take financial advice from a guy 
called “Nails?”

WHO IS HE?
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§ Many of his investments went bad, most notably his 
attempt to flip Wayne Gretsky’s former mansion, which 
Dykstra purchased for over $17 million.

§ When he filed for chapter 11, he concealed baseball 
gloves and other memorabilia that were property of his 
bankruptcy estate.

§ Among other things, he sold or destroyed at least 
$200,000 in property of the estate.  

§ Some of the property was sold to a consignment store 
for cash Dykstra supposedly then pocketed.

WHAT’D HE DO?

22



§ Pled guilty to concealment of assets, bankruptcy fraud, 
and money laundering.

§ Served 6 months in the pen and was ordered to pay 
$200,000 in restitution and perform 500 hours of 
community service.

§ He also got caught up in a grand-theft auto scheme and 
has had other run-ins with the law.

WHAT HAPPENED TO HIM?
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§ Apparently, this is a reality TV show about children being 
trained for the dance and show business by Abby Lee 
Miller, pictured below:

“DANCE MOMS” STAR ABBY LEE MILLER
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§ Pled guilty to one count of concealing bankruptcy assets 
and one count of not reporting an international monetary 
transaction.

§ The investigation began when a bankruptcy judge came 
across her Lifetime show one night on TV.

§ The judge was perplexed as to why Miller did not report any 
income from the show on her bankruptcy filings.

§ The investigation also turned up that Miller had arranged 
for employees to sneak $120,000 into the U.S. from 
Australia in Ziploc bags.

WHAT’D SHE DO?
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§ Miller texted an associate: “We have all this foreign 
cash.  Need a little money laundering.”

TEXT OF THE YEAR
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§ On May 9, 2017, Miller was sentenced to a year and a day 
in prison, though she may serve 9 months or less.

WHAT HAPPENED TO HER?
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HOW CAN YOU GET BUSTED?
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§ The US Trustee.
§ Chapter 7 and Chapter 13 trustee investigations.
§ Chapter 11 committee investigations.
§ “2004 exams,” the scope of which has been described as a 

“fishing expedition.”
§ Remember, the trustee succeeds to the debtor’s privileges.
§ Poorly drafting a fraudulent document?
§ Fraudulently putting someone into a bankruptcy without his 

knowledge?

BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS HAVE BROAD 
INVESTIGATIVE POTENTIAL
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§ Ensure that each client is informed of what conduct constitutes 
bankruptcy fraud.

§ Consider having each client sign a handout explaining relevant 
provisions of Chapter 9 of Title 18.

§ Take care to be sure that all documents filed in the case are true 
to the best of your knowledge.

§ Disclose, disclose, disclose.
§ Beware of social media.
§ And remember, “the license to practice law is not tantamount to 

a license to commit a crime.”  Coghlan v. United States, 147 F.3d 
233 (8th Cir. 1945).

HOW CAN I AVOID GOING TO PRISON?
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Eric Madden Matthias Kleinsasser
emadden@rctlegal.com mkleinsasser@forsheyprostok.com

Erin Schmidt
erin.schmidt2@usdoj.gov

QUESTIONS?

31


